








 

 
TOWN OF MILTON, VERMONT  05468-3205 

 
Town Manager’s Office   • 43 Bombardier Road • 802-893-6655 • FAX: 893-1005 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
TO: Milton Selectboard 
 
FROM:  Erik Wells, Director- Administration & Community Affairs 
 
RE: Milton Solar Projects 
 
DATE:  March 18, 2016 
 
This memo will update the Selectboard on the solar arrays in development for the landfill 
and wastewater plants sites. Jesse Stowell from Sun Edison will be at the meeting on 
March 21 to go into further detail on the developments since December and what a path 
forward looks like.  
 
To recap, this has been the timeline on these projects so far: 
October 2014: RFP Issued 
December 2014: January 2015: RFP Review Committee selects Sun Edison  
January 2015– July 2015: Power purchase agreement and option to lease agreements 
negotiated and adopted. During this time the decision to flip the purpose of the arrays was 
made- community solar to wastewater plant and net metering to landfill. This was 
intended to maximize the potential sizing. Sun Edison informed that highly unlikely to have 
approval to locate a 3.8 MW community solar at landfill after it consulted with legal 
counsel. So that was intended to be the net metering array, where the Town would be one 
of the entities benefitting. The community solar would then be 500kw located at the 
wastewater treatment plant.  
August 2015:  November 2015: Projects handed off to Sun Edison development team, 
work begins on site assessment and evaluation consulting with Vermont ANR and Green 
Mountain Power.  
December 2015: Conference calls with Sun Edison, Erik Wells and Roger Hunt.  
January 2016: Notification regarding modifications for project sizing from Sun Edison 
(more below) 
March 2016: Update and discussion with Sun Edison. This was pushed forward due to 
budget and Town Meeting Day.  
 
 
 
 
 
Project Changes- Landfill Site 
 



 

 
 

• The net metering rules are being rewritten with anticipated adoption this summer 
(net metering 2.0). These will affect the power purchase agreement structure and 
timing for construction. All projects will not need to be online by end of 2016 as is 
the case currently. 

• The landfill project was split between two areas on the site. The northern capped 
portion of the landfill and the southern uncapped and wooded section. 
Approximate split was 2.8 MW system in the southern portion and 1 MW system 
on the northern section at a $10,000 per MW of production annual lease rate 
($38,430) for the site.  

• Sun Edison, after completing its assessment of the southern area of the site, has 
decided that it does not want to develop that portion. Copied below are the factors 
in this decision from Courtney Searle, Sun Edison’s Manager of this project: 

 South Landfill Issues: 
o The site is not characterized – unknown limits of the landfill, unknown 

type of waste, no record of how the landfill was capped 
o Landfill is currently completely covered in 15-20 year tree growth 

increasing the cost to develop the project significantly. 
 Any removal of the trees or stumping would require approval and 

investigation by VTDEC 
o Subsurface exploration would be required  
o In order to carry out any of these items would require prior review and 

approval from the VTDEC. SunEdison would require a comfort letter from 
the VTDEC for liability purpose.  

o The cost to develop any landfill is high. The required additional 
development work at a high risk damages the project economics making 
this landfill not viable for SunEdison to build. 
 

• This left the Northern capped section of the landfill to develop. A secondary factor 
with Green Mountain Power has affected the sizing here. The site could be 
maximized for this project at the 1 MW system. A provision in State Statute states a 
capped landfill may be developed up to 500 kW, and can exceed that cap with the 
authorization from the utility where the power interconnection takes place. Copied 
below are notes and timelines regarding this issue and the reasons provided by 
Courtney Searle. Green Mountain Power will not exceed the 500 kW cap at the site, 
thus limiting the sizing to 500 kW at the northern capped landfill. This is about 
one-eighth of the original capacity size explored for the site. This is the net 
metering project site, so the Town will still be able to maximize its net metering 
credit opportunity based on the size. The amount of kW allocated to net metering 
credits based on the Town’s use in just under 500 kW. 
 
 
 
 
GMP Process: 

o Interconnection application submitted November 13, 2015 



 

 
 

o Received email confirmation from GMP that this project meets the 
municipal landfill exemption in Act 99 (H. 702)  and that the project 
would be moved through the process as normal. November 18, 2015. 

o Early December we had two calls with GMP in attempt to work around 
GMP pulling the plug on the Milton Landfill project.  

 
Elaborated email reply regarding GMP from Courtney Searle: 
 
In December, SunEdison engaged in discussions with Charlotte Ancel, VP of Power 
Supply and General Counsel at GMP.  Charlotte informed us that GMP was not accepting 
any more large landfill projects as Net Metering arrangements due to cost.  The enabling 
legislation for large landfill net metering projects gives the utility the sole option to 
decline them: 
 
“If the interconnecting electric company agrees, a solar facility or group of solar facilities 
for the generation of electricity, to be installed by one or more municipalities on a 
closed landfill, shall be considered a net metering system for purposes of this section if 
the facility or group of facilities has a total capacity of 5 MW or less and meets the 
provisions of subdivisions (a)(6)(B)–(D) of this section. The facilities or group of facilities 
may serve as a group net metering system that includes and is limited to each 
participating municipality. In this subdivision (2), “municipality” shall have the same 
meaning as under 24 V.S.A. § 4551.” 
http://www.leg.state.vt.us/docs/2014/Acts/ACT099.pdf 
 
We were completely surprised by GMP’s position, especially since we had already 
received confirmation from GMP’s interconnection team that our project was in the 
queue.    The reality was that the project had met the technical requirements, but that 
GMP was choosing to exert their authority in order to reduce their costs.  We made a 
strong case to Charlotte that we had many municipalities lined up to benefit from this 
project.  She was sympathetic but did not budge on her position.   
 
Since then (after meeting with ANR) we’ve separately determined that the size of solar 
project that will be feasible at the landfill site is smaller than we had originally 
estimated. The ANR meeting also revealed that, given the lack of available 
documentation on the South landfill,  the permitting process was going to take longer 
and be much more costly than expected.  These two facts make GMP’s rejection of the 
net metering project slightly less impactful.   
 
Our goal is get this project completed under the new Net Metering rules (“Net Metering 
2.0”), which will be finalized in July 2016 and take affect for all projects commissioning 
after Jan 1, 2017. 
________________________________________________________________________ 

 
Project Changes- Water/Wastewater Site 

http://www.leg.state.vt.us/docs/2014/Acts/ACT099.pdf


 

 
 

• The cap for net metering projects for GMP was exceeded while this project was in 
the review and application process. This was designed as a 500 kW project. The 
landfill project was not subject to this cap, separate rules.  

• There is a lottery being held for a handful of smaller scale projects at 150 kW under 
the old Net Metering rules. This lottery will take place in Spring of 2016.  SunEdison 
recommends that we attempt to gain a spot in this lottery in order to capture the 
higher Net Metering Credit values of the older program.   If we are unsuccessful, 
then we can utilize the Net Metering 2.0 rules for that site. 

• It is anticipated that under the Net Metering 2.0 rules the cap will be eliminated 
completely, but that the Net Metering Credit value will be substantially lower.    

 
Overall cost benefit implications 

• The new net metering rules will affect how the power purchase agreement is 
structured. 

• For the landfill, the annual lease revenue for the 500 kW would be $7,500 and a 20 
year lease agreement.  

• Comparative cost charts produced by Sun Edison are attached.  
• SunEdison has paid the Town $12,751 to offset legal expenses and $1,875 to split 

the landfill post closure certification application.  
 
Decisions for the Selectboard to Make 

• Proceed with these revised projects in size and timeline 
• Power purchase agreement under net metering 2.0 rules 

 
 



Milton Police Department 
37 Bombardier Road 

Milton, VT 05468 
(802) 893-6171 Voice 
(802) 893-6032   Fax 

 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Incentive Bonus for New Police Officers Page 1 3/18/16 9:01 AM 

 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 
TO:   Donna Barlow Casey, Town Manager 
FROM:   Chief Brett Van Noordt 
DATE:   March 18, 2016 
SUBJECT:  Incentive Bonus for New Police Officers 
 
Since the two retirements and one resignation in 2015, we have hired three (3) officers. 
One completed the police academy and is still working for us and the other two signed and 
agreed to their letters of hire, but months later had a change of heart and said they no 
longer wished to be in law enforcement. 
 
We have polygraphed around 7 other potential police candidates and interviewed over 40 
potential police candidates. Since early 2015, we have not been able to successfully fill our 
two open slots.  
 
Hundreds of hours have been spent and wasted in this hiring process. Hundreds of dollars 
have been spent on polygraphs and overtime to conduct background investigations.  
 
From the information we gathered (below) you will see that different police agencies 
around the State of Vermont are offering varying amounts of money to new officers. They 
either reward for higher education or for being full time certified.  
 
We are having a very hard time finding qualified people that want to be police officers. We 
are asking that the Selectboard allow the Town Manager to approve a sign on bonus for 
new police officers to help attract quality police candidates.  
 
What is proposed is a $2,000 sign on bonus for an Associates Degree and $4,000 sign on 
bonus for a Bachelors Degree, or $2,000 sign on bonus for a Part-Time certified officer and a 
$4,000 sign on bonus for a Full-Time certified officer, but not both. The Police Department 
budget can support these incentive bonuses. 
 
 
 
 



Milton Police Department 
37 Bombardier Road 

Milton, VT 05468 
(802) 893-6171 Voice 
(802) 893-6032   Fax 

 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Incentive Bonus for New Police Officers Page 2 3/18/16 9:01 AM 

 
St. Albans Police Department 
Up to $3,500.00 Signing Bonus (For Certified Police Officers) 
 
Springfield Police Department 
Successful applicants who are fully certified police officers by the State of Vermont prior to 
working for the town are eligible for employment bonuses up to $6,000.00 and a salary that 
reflects their qualifications within an established pay scale. 
 
UVM Police Services 
Up to $6,000 signing bonus 
 
Wilmington Police Department 
A hiring bonus of $5,000 is available for applicants who are already full-time certified in 
Vermont, or $2,500 for officers with Vermont part-time certification that are able to meet 
the requirements and attend the next available full-time academy class. 
 
Burlington Police Department 
Starting salary ranges from $46,016 - $56,576 per year depending upon experience  
Education incentives: annual bonus of $400 for an Associate’s Degree, $800 for a Bachelor’s 
Degree, and $1200 for a Master’s Degree  
 
Colchester PD 
$5000 for VT certified 
Half paid in completion of field training  
Half paid when probation ends (one year) 
 
Williston PD 
No sign on bonus 
 
South Burlington PD 
“Up to $7,500” sign on bonus for any full-time Vermont certified officer. 
 
Essex PD 
No sign on bonus 
 
UVM PD 
Range is $3,000 to $6,000 (Depending on Qualifications) 



RESOLUTION 
Town of Milton Selectboard  

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Dated at Milton, Vermont this ______ day of _________, 2016 
 
SELECTBOARD 

_______________________________ _________________________________ 
Darren Adams, Chairperson Kenneth Nolan, Vice Chair  

 
_______________________________ _________________________________ 
John Bartlett,  Clerk John Cushing 

 
_______________________________ 
John Palasik 

 
Filed with the Milton Town Clerk’s Office this ______ day of _____________, 2016 

 
Attestation: ___________________________________________ 





















 

Selectboard Minutes Page 1 of 4         March 7, 2016 
 

Milton Selectboard Meeting Minutes 1 
March 7, 2016 6:00 P.M.  2 

Municipal Building Community Room 3 
       4 
Selectboard Members Present:  Darren Adams, Chair; Kenneth Nolan, Vice Chair; John Bartlett, Clerk; 5 
John Cushing, Member; John Palasik, Member 6 

Selectboard Members Not Present:  none 7 

Staff Members Present: Donna Barlow Casey, Town Manager; Erik Wells, Director- Administration & 8 
Community Services; Jacob Hemmerick, Planning Director; Kym Duchesneau, Recreation Coordinator; 9 
Ben Nappi, Assistant Recreation Coordinator; Roger Hunt, Public Works Director; Nathan Lavallee, 10 
Water/Wastewater Superintendent; Jeff Caste, Town Planner; Amanda Pitts, Zoning Admin.  11 
 12 
Others Present: Henry Bonges, Lori Donna, Courtney Lamdin, Stu King, Jenn Taylor, Terry Melton, 13 
Kaitlyn Thibaulat, John Lindsay, Julie Rutz 14 
 15 
I. Call to Order –  Adams called the meeting to order at 6:00 PM 16 
 17 
II. Flag Salute – Adams led the attendees in a Salute to the Flag.  18 

 19 
III. Agenda Review- Community Champion Committee applicant Terry Melton was added after item 20 

B of section V. Ultimate Frisbee Championship Event permit was moved to after the joint 21 
meeting with the Planning Commission as new business item A. Update on water leak added 22 
after fireworks donation in new business as item C. Discussion regarding a municipal resolution 23 
circulating among Vermont Towns advocating for increased local control for renewable energy 24 
projects was added to new business as item H. 25 
 26 

IV. Public Forum- None  27 
 28 

V. Appointments, Recognition & Event Permit 29 
A. Welcome New Selectboard Member John Palasik 30 

Adams welcomed John Palasik as a new member to the Selectboard. Palasik is a retired 31 
Milton Police Sergeant and served on the Selectboard in the 1980s.   32 

 33 
B. Honor Stuart King for Selectboard Service 34 

The Selectboard thanked former member Stuart King for his service on the Board. King 35 
served from 1894-1986 and 2014-2016. King was presented with a plaque 36 
commemorating his service. Bartlett read a resolution honoring King and moved to 37 
approve the resolution as presented. Second by Cushing. Approved unanimously.  38 
 39 

C. Community Champions Award Committee Appointment 40 
Cushing moved to appoint Terry Melton to a one year term on the Community 41 
Champion Awards Committee. Second by Bartlett. Approved unanimously.  42 
 43 

VI. Joint Meeting with Planning Commission  44 
A. Discuss Draft Zoning Bylaw Amendments, DB1 Zoning District 45 

Planning Director Jacob Hemmerick and the Planning Commissioners updated the 46 
Selectboard on the progress of the DB1 zoning bylaw amendments. There will be a 47 



 

Selectboard Minutes Page 2 of 4         March 7, 2016 
 

community workshop on April 5 at 6:30 PM for the public to weigh in and discuss the 48 
draft zoning bylaw amendments for the DB1 district.  49 
 50 
 51 

VII. New Business and Department Items 52 
A. Ultimate Frisbee Championship Facility Use and Entertainment Permit 53 

  Ben Nappi stated this event was hosted by Milton last year and was a great success. The  54 
  organizers are excited at another opportunity to bring the event to Milton. Bartlett  55 
  moved to approve the facility use and entertainment permits as presented. Second by  56 
  Cushing. Approved unanimously. 57 
 58 

B. Winter Festival Fireworks Donation 59 
Recreation Coordinator Kym Duchesneau explained the resolution before the Board 60 
thanks and accept the fireworks donation by Mike Boisjeli at the Winter Festival on 61 
February 12th. Cushing moved to approve the resolution as presented, second by 62 
Bartlett. Approved unanimously. 63 
 64 

C. Water Leak Update 65 
Water/Wastewater Superintendent Nathan Lavallee updated the Board that work 66 
continues to locate a suspected water leak due to use data. Leak detection continues 67 
and additional agencies have been consulted, including the Champlain Water District. 68 
Work will continue and the Board will receive updates. 69 
 70 

D. VTrans Class 2 Highway Grant Application 71 
Public Works Director Roger Hunt stated this is a grant from VTrans to aid in paving 72 
Class 2 Highways in Town. Award can be up to $175,000. The application is due by April 73 
15th. He presented the Board with a few different scenarios to consider for the 74 
application- looking at Everest Road, North Road and Munson Hill as some prime focus 75 
areas. The Board discussed the various scenarios and paving overall. Discussion will 76 
continue at the next Selectboard Meeting. 77 
 78 

E. Acting Zoning Administrator Policy 79 
Zoning Administrator Amanda Pitts explained the Town needs to have a policy in place 80 
for an Acting Zoning Administrator in her absence. Bartlett moved to accept the Acting 81 
Zoning Administrator Policy as presented, second by Cushing. Approved unanimously. 82 
 83 

F. Planning & Zoning Permit Fee Schedule Amendment  84 
Hemmerick continued the discussion from the February 16th meeting, providing the 85 
Board with an overview of the revenue impact with the new fee schedule. Bartlett 86 
moved to accept the Planning and Zoning Permit Fee Schedule Amendment Resolution 87 
as presented, second by Nolan. Approved unanimously. 88 
 89 

G. Glebe Land  90 
Hemmerick gave an overview of Glebe Land, a practice that dates back to English 91 
Colonialism, in preparation for a future agenda item where the Town will be asked to 92 
approve a quit claim deed on Glebe Land for a real estate transaction. 93 
 94 
 95 
 96 



 

Selectboard Minutes Page 3 of 4         March 7, 2016 
 

H. Renewable Energy Project Locating Resolution 97 
Adams circulated a resolution that Vermont Towns have been adopting advocating for 98 
increased local control on renewable energy project locating. Will discuss further at the 99 
next Selectboard Meeting. 100 
 101 

VIII. Warrant/Report #19 102 
 Bartlett reviewed warrant #19. He mentioned a few items, in random order: 103 
 104 

• Cargill, Inc., $11,502.69 - winter salt @ state bid price of $74.35 105 
• GMP, $16,582.21 - electricity, monthly billing 106 
• Kofile Preservation, $4,296.00 - restoration of 3 vital records books for TC office 107 
• Mike's Boring & Coring, $5,130 - Test boring on Beebe Hill Rd, Lake Rd culvert, Quarry Lane 108 

culvert 109 
• Milton Firefighters Association, $1,183.91 - payment for Rescue department portion of annual 110 

banquet (42 members) 111 
• New England Environmental Equipment, $5,837 - replace influent automatic composite sampler 112 

- wastewater dept - "Overspent by $5,780.72" "Overage will be covered by under spending w/w 113 
general supplies @ end of year" 114 

• New Office Furniture Exchange, $598 - 2 new multi-task Apollo Desk Chairs for TM office - "Cost 115 
will be balanced by under spending other areas of TM budget" 116 

• Rowley Fuels, $5,178.17 - February diesel and heating oil 117 
• Town of Colchester, $66,747.83 - Installment 2 of 3 for Police, Fire & Rescue Dispatch (contract 118 

runs 7/1/15-6/30/16) 119 
• VT Gas, $5,051.97 - monthly billing for natural gas 120 
• Weststaff, $1,753.39 - 3 weeks billing for Finance temp 121 

 122 
Bartlett moved to approve warrant report #19 in the amount of $213,899.11, second by 123 
Cushing. Approved 4-1 (Adams opposed).  124 

 125 
IX. Minutes of February 16, and 29 Meetings 126 
 Bartlett moved to approve the minutes from the February 16, 2016 and February 29, 2016 127 
 Selectboard meetings as presented. Nolan second. Approved 4-0 (Palasik abstained). 128 
 129 
 Barlow Casey read into the record an email from resident Michael Boisjeli. It stated he is in full 130 
 support of the Milton Grange and did not want the community to think otherwise from his 131 
 questions at pre-town meeting on February 29. 132 
 133 
X. Executive Session 134 

Bartlett moved to find premature public knowledge about Human Resources and Contract 135 
Negotiations would cause the Town or person to suffer a substantial disadvantage.   Second by 136 
Nolan. Approved unanimously.  137 
  138 
Bartlett moved to enter into Executive Session to discuss Contract Negotiations under the 139 
provisions of V.S.A. Title 1 Section 313 and include Barlow Casey, Erik Wells and Peter Anthony.   140 
Second by Nolan.    Approved unanimously. 141 
 142 
Bartlett moved to enter into Executive Session to discuss Human Resources under the 143 
provisions of V.S.A. Title 1 Section 313 and include Barlow Casey and Wells. Second by Cushing.    144 
Approved unanimously. 145 



 

Selectboard Minutes Page 4 of 4         March 7, 2016 
 

Entered Executive Session at 8:25 PM. 146 
 147 
Bartlett moved to close Executive Session at   10:28 PM.  Second by Cushing. Approved  148 
unanimously.  149 
 150 
Bartlett moved to allow the Town Manager to negotiate a 30 day contract with Peter Anthony 151 
to serve as a financial research consultant. Second by Nolan. Approved unanimously.  152 
 153 

XI. Adjournment 154 
 155 
Bartlett moved to adjourn the Selectboard Meeting. Second by Cushing. Approved 156 
unanimously. 157 
 158 
Adams adjourned the meeting at 10:30 PM.  159 
   160 

Respectfully Submitted, 161 
 162 

___________________________________ Date: _______________________ 163 
John Bartlett, Selectboard Clerk 164 
 165 
Filed with Milton Town Clerk’s Office on this __________ day of __________, _____ 166 
 167 
 ATTEST: ____________________________________ Milton Town Clerk                          168 



 

Selectboard Minutes Page 1 of 2        March 14, 2016 
 

Milton Selectboard Meeting Minutes 1 
March 14, 2016 6:00 PM 2 

Town Manager’s Conference Room 3 
       4 
Selectboard Members Present:  Darren Adams, Chair; Kenneth Nolan, Vice Chair; John Bartlett, Clerk; 5 
John Cushing, Member; John Palasik, Member 6 

Selectboard Members Not Present:  none 7 

Staff Members Present: Donna Barlow Casey, Town Manager  8 
 9 
Others Present: none 10 
 11 
I. Call to Order –  Adams called the meeting to order at 6:00 PM 12 
 13 
II. Agenda Review- Selectboard goal setting for the year added as new business 14 

 15 
III. Public Forum- None  16 

 17 
IV. New Business 18 

A. Selectboard Goal Setting 19 
 The Selectboard talked about prioritizing economic development, resolving financial issues, 20 
 restructuring of the capital improvement plan, staffing improvement plan and there was a 21 
 question whether the Town may have any Legislation to advocate for in the next biennium. No 22 
 action was taken as this was not on the warned agenda prior to the meeting.  23 
 24 
V. Executive Session 25 

Palasik moved to find premature public knowledge about Human Resources would cause the 26 
Town or person to suffer a substantial disadvantage.  Second by Bartlett. Approved 27 
unanimously.  28 
  29 
Palasik moved to enter into Executive Session to discuss Human Resources under the provisions 30 
of V.S.A. Title 1 Section 313 and include Barlow Casey.   Second by Bartlett.    Approved 31 
unanimously. 32 
 33 
Entered Executive Session at 8:32 PM 34 
 35 
Cushing moved to close Executive Session at  10:05  PM.  Second by Bartlett. Approved  36 
unanimously.  37 
 38 
There was no action taken as a result of executive session. 39 

 40 
VI. Adjournment 41 

 42 
Cushing moved to adjourn the Selectboard Meeting. Second by Bartlett. Approved 43 
unanimously. 44 
 45 
Adams adjourned the meeting at 10:07 PM.  46 
   47 



 

Selectboard Minutes Page 2 of 2        March 14, 2016 
 

 48 
 49 

Respectfully Submitted, 50 
 51 

___________________________________ Date: _______________________ 52 
John Bartlett, Selectboard Clerk 53 
 54 
Filed with Milton Town Clerk’s Office on this __________ day of __________, _____ 55 
 56 
 ATTEST: ____________________________________ Milton Town Clerk                          57 


	Signed Agenda 3.21.16
	Rich Castine Comm Champions
	MEMO Solar Project Update 3 21 16-JWS (2)
	TOWN OF MILTON, VERMONT  05468-3205

	Incentive Bonus for New Police Officers
	Solar Siting Resolution
	Warrant 20
	SB Minutes 3.7.16 Draft
	SB Minutes 3.14.16 Draft

